
AECOM 312-373-7700 tel 
303 E. Wacker Drive, Suite 1400 312-373-6800 fax 
Chicago, Illinois 60606

December 6, 2018 

Mr. Robert Wilson 
Mobilitie, LLC 
120 S. Riverside Plaza, Suite 1800 
Chicago, IL  60606 

RE: Small Cell Wireless Installation – 316-400 E. Ontario St. 
Permit No.:  DOT1019656 
Permit Address:  316-400 E. Ontario St., Chicago, Illinois 
AECOM Project No. 60579801 

Dear Mr. Wilson: 

Pursuant to conditions specified in a permit (attached) issued by the City of Chicago Department of Public 
Health (CDPH), radiation monitoring was required to be performed at the above referenced site.  AECOM 
Technical Services, Inc. (AECOM) provided radiation surveillance on November 8, 2018 for the 
installation of the small cell wireless service.   

The proposed excavation work consisted of a shallow trench excavation across E. Ontario Street and two 
openings in the northern E. Ontario Street sidewalk (refer to annotated drawing).  The length of trench 
was approximately 39-feet with a width of 1-ft and depth of 42-inches.  The western sidewalk opening 
was at the northern end of the trench.  The eastern sidewalk opening was approximately 60 feet east of 
the trench.  It included the installation of a new utility pole foundation and had a final excavation depth of 
9-feet.  Horizontal boring equipment was utilized to install new conduit between the two sidewalk 
openings.

The USEPA removal action level for Chicago’s Streeterville area is 7.1 picocuries per gram (pCi/g) total 
radium (Ra-226 + Ra-228).  Gamma radiation count measurements for the project were recorded using a 
Ludlum Model 2221 survey meter and a shielded 2 x 2-inch Nal probe (Model 44-10).  For the instrument 
(S/N: 172039) used the gamma count threshold indicative of the 7.1 pCi/g removal action level is 6,669 
counts per minute (cpm) shielded for the 6-foot probe cable and 6,456 cpm for 15-foot probe cable.  A 
field instrument background was collected at one of the nearby tree pits.  The field instrument background 
gamma reading collected with the short probe cable was 1,200 cpm.      

The trench excavation across E. Ontario Street was completed early in the afternoon of November 7, 
2018.  The spoils from the excavation consisted of approximately 12-inches of asphalt and concrete 
pavement followed by a layer of gravel subgrade base.  The lower portions of the trench were a mixture 
of gravel and fill.  The trench was backfilled with CA7 gravel and concrete.  The incorrect contractor was 
inadvertently listed on the CDPH form.  AECOM did not become aware of the start of the field work until 
the afternoon of November 7, 2018.  At that time, the trench excavation had been completed and had just 
been backfilled, so screening of the trench excavation and spoil was not able to be performed.  AECOM 
followed up with the contractor and determined that spoil from the narrow trench was predominantly 
composed of gravel.  Since the trench with was narrow, the volume of spoil (minus the pavement) was only 
a couple of yards.  These spoils from the trench excavation were transported to a landfill for disposal.  

The western sidewalk opening was primarily performed to connect the conduit from the trench to that 
installed beneath the sidewalk.  Minimal vertical excavation was required at this opening, so the gamma 
monitoring was limited to a surface survey after the removal of the 6-inches of concrete pavement.  
Gamma readings for the western sidewalk excavation for the 6-24 inch fill horizon ranged from 1,600 to 
2,000 cpm with the shield probe and short cable. 
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The eastern sidewalk opening was performed to install a new utility pole foundation and make 
connections to the new conduit.  After removal of the concrete pavement, the gamma readings for the 
exposed fill ranged from 1,200 to 1,800 cpm with a shielded probe and short cable.  Gamma readings 
were collected as vertical excavation proceeded utilizing a hydro-vacuum truck.  The excavation was 
conducted to remove the existing foundation as well as install a new foundation (refer to photos).  The 
gamma readings for the foundation excavation were conducted with a long cable and shielded probe 
(cutoff threshold 6,456 cpm).  The gamma readings ranged from approximately 1,200 to 2,500 cpm.  The 
highest readings (2,100-2,500 cpm) were observed at a depth of 3-feet and readings decreased to 1,700 
cpm at the base of the 9-foot deep excavation.       

The monitoring did not indicate that the fill soils were above the removal action level established by the 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) for the Streeterville area of Chicago.  The USEPA 
removal action level for Chicago’s Streeterville area is 7.1 picocuries per gram (pCi/g) total radium 
(Ra-226 + Ra-228).  The field gamma measurements within the excavations during the excavation 
process did not exceed the instrument threshold previously stated and ranged from a minimum of 1,200 
cpm to a maximum of 2,500 cpm shielded.  Based on field observations there was no indication of the 
presence of radiologically-contaminated fill and/or an exceedance of the USEPA removal action level of 
7.1 pCi/g total radium.  A copy of the permit, annotated drawing and photographs documenting work  
performed have been included as attachments.   

As part of the permit conditions, a PDF of this letter has been emailed to the USEPA and to: 

Chicago Department of Public Health 
Attention:  Mr. Terry Sheahan 
333 South State Street, Room 200 
Chicago, Illinois 60604 

Please contact us with any questions you have regarding this letter or the reported results. 

Regards, 

Andrew Kozak Steven C. Kornder, Ph.D. 
Geologist Senior Project Geochemist 

cc: Terry Sheahan, Chicago Department of Public Health 
Verneta Simon, USEPA 
Jose J Galvez, Lyons-Pinner 

Attachments: CDPH Permit 
Annotated Drawing
Photographs 
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ANNOTATED DRAWING 
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Trench Excavation - 39' x 1' x 42"
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PHOTOGRAPHS 



 
 
 

 

 
 

Looking west from the eastern sidewalk excavation at the western sidewalk excavation location 
and completed trench excavation. 



 
 
 

 

 
 

Eastern excavation in northern sidewalk on E. Ontario Street prior to removal of the existing foundation.  
 
 
 



 
 
 

 

 
 
Eastern sidewalk excavation on northern sidewalk of E. Ontario Street after removal of the original 
foundation with excavation for new utility pole foundation complete.  
 




